
Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Wednesday, 7 March 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Planning Committee:

Councillors: B Alcock, D Ashby, J Avery (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, P E Coupland, 
H Drury, L J Eldridge, R Gambba-Jones (Chairman), R Grocock, C J Lawton, 
J L Reynolds, M D Seymour, A C Tennant, J Tyrrell and P A Williams

Substitute Members of the Planning Committee

Any member may sit on the pool of substitutes for the Planning Committee provided they 
receive training every 12 months as approved by the Council (minute 290(c)/05 refers). 
Substitutions are for individual meetings only. 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   27 February 2018

Public Document Pack

Page 1



A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
7 February 2018 (copy enclosed).  

(Pages 
3 - 8)

3. Declaration of Interests. - (Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a Councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.)

4. Questions asked under the Council's Constitution (Standing Orders). 
5. H09-0863-17 - Outline planning application for a residential 

development of 7 dwellings, including for the demolition of existing site 
buildings at Swepstones Ltd, 115-119 Battlefields Lane North, 
Holbeach.

(Pages 
9 - 18)

6. H16-1053-17 - Full planning application for the erection of a pair of 
semi-detached dwellings at the land adjacent to 37 St Pauls Road, 
Spalding. 

(Pages 
19 - 28)

7. H02-1192-17 - Outline planning application, with all matters reserved for 
the erection of two detached houses to the rear of number 10 
Peterborough Road, Crowland. (Re-submission of H02-0536-17.)

(Pages 
29 - 36)

8. H01-1017-17 - Full application for the erection of a self-contained 
building to be used as an annexe at 24 Clarkson Avenue, Cowbit, 
Spalding.

(Pages 
37 - 44)

9. H09-0023-18 - Full application for extension and alterations to property 
at 12 Fakenham Chase, Holbeach, Spalding.

(Pages 
45 - 50)

10. H11-0003-18 - Full application for extension and alterations including 
single garage at property at 65 Little London, Spalding.

(Pages 
51 - 54)

11. Appeals - To provide an update on recent Appeal decisions (report of 
the Development Manager enclosed).

(Pages 
55 - 56)

12. Planning Updates. 

13. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. - 

Note: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  

Page 2



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 7 February 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
D Ashby
A Casson
P E Coupland
H Drury

L J Eldridge
R Grocock
A M Newton
C J Lawton
M D Seymour

A C Tennant
J Tyrrell

In Attendance:  Development Manager, Principal Planning Officer, Senior Planning 
Lawyer and Lead Democratic Services Officer. 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis 
and J L Reynolds 

84. MINUTES 

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018.

DECISION:

That the minutes of the meeting be agreed and signed by the Chairman.

85. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

Item 5 – H16–1174-17
It was noted that Councillor Avery did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
this item.  However, he knew the applicant and so would leave the room for the 
duration of the item.

Item 6 - H09-1128-17
It was noted that all members of the Planning Committee (except Councillors Casson 
and Newton who were substitute members) had been lobbied on this item.

86. H04-0823-17 

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H04-0823-17 – National Grid Viking 
Link Ltd

Full application for the installation of high voltage 
Direct Current cables for the Viking Link interconnector 
project between proposed landfall at Boygrift in East 
Lindsay to a proposed converter station at North Ing 
Drove, Donington; installation of Alternative Current 
cables from the converter station to the existing Bicker 
Fen 400kV Substation; as well as permanent access 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



- 2 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 February 2018

road to converter station, temporary facilities required 
during construction such as compounds and works 
areas at Ing Drove, Donington.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

As part of the presentation, the Planning Officer informed the Committee of the 
following information that had become available following the publication of the 
agenda:

 The Council’s Environmental Protection Team were happy with the 
application’s Environmental Statement.

 The Environment Agency had no objection to the converter station.  It was 
noted however that the Environment Agency maintained a holding objection 
with regard to cable routes and river crossings.  There were no main river 
crossings in South Holland, but there was an impact for the South Forty Foot 
Drain.  The applicants were working to overcome this issue with a relevant 
legal agreement.

 Reference to ‘Best and Most Versatile’ agricultural land was as a result of the 
Council’s own assessment in consultation with a range of Stakeholders.

 Boston Borough Council had considered its response to the Council’s 
consultation and had no objection to this application.

In discussing the application, and in response to issues raised by the public speaker 
objecting to the proposal, Councillors sought assurances that the issue of the 
proposed fencing would be re-examined to try to find a way to accommodate wildlife 
whilst maintaining the security of the site. It was confirmed that discussions would 
take place with the applicant and that the outcome would be referred to Chairman’s 
Panel.

DECISION:

That planning permission be approved subject to those conditions listed at Section 9 
of this report, subject to allowing officers under delegated authority to revisit condition 
wording, in conjunction with the other 3 Local Planning Authorities once the 
outcomes of the applications submitted to North Kesteven District Council, East 
Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council are known.

(Moved by Councillor Tennant, seconded by Councillor Avery)

Oral representations were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Page 4

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 3 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 February 2018

Supporter – Liz Wells (Applicant)
Objector – Elizabeth Almond (Resident)

87. H16-1174-17 

Councillor Avery left the meeting at 7.25 p.m.

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-1174-17 – Bridge Farm 
Nurseries Ltd and Clay lake Farm Ltd.

Full application for proposed glasshouse development 
at land off Clay Lake Bank, Spalding, Lincolnshire.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to the carrying out of further 
archaeological investigations, and those conditions listed at section 9 of this report.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, seconded by Councillor Tenant)

Oral representation were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Supporter – David Ball (Applicant)

88. H09-1128-17 

Councillor Avery returned to the meeting at 7.37 pm

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-1128-17 – Proway Building Ltd S73A Continuation application for the erection of two 

dwellings – approved under H09-0931-13. Modification 
of Condition 2 to allow amendments to previously 
approved plans.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Page 5

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 4 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 February 2018

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to those conditions listed at Section 9 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Seymour, seconded by Councillor Tennant)

(Councillor Newton wished it to be recorded in the minutes that she voted against the 
recommendation set out in the report.)

Oral representation were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

Objector – Ann Kidd (Resident)

89. H14-0912-17 

(Councillor Eldridge left the room at 8.08 pm and returned to the room at 8.12 pm)

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H14-0912-17 – PJ Borst Esq Outline application for residential development at 

Crossgate Lane, Pinchbeck, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to the applicant entering into a Section 
106 agreement for the provision of a third on-site affordable housing units, and those 
Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

(Moved by Councillor Avery, seconded by Councillor Grocock)

Page 6

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 5 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 February 2018

90. H17-1064-17 

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H17-1064-17 – Tonic Health Full application for the renovation and change of use 

of derelict building to community hub at 44 Station 
Road, Surfleet, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

Councillors noted that with regard to Condition 5, the second sentence was 
superfluous to requirements and would be removed. 

Councillors also discussed Condition 4 and the reference to the premises only being 
used for the benefit of the local community.  As the facilities would be used by away 
teams and for quiz nights this would be hard to monitor and it was requested that this 
sentence be removed.

DECISION:

That subject to the second sentence of Condition 5 and the second sentence of 
Condition 6 being removed, planning permission be granted subject to the Conditions 
listed at Section 9 of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Avery, seconded by Councillor Drury)

91. H20-1148-17 

Plan No. and Applicant Proposal
H20-1148-17 – Mr and Mrs P Stubley Outline application for residential development (3 

plots) off Chapel Gate, Sutton St James, Spalding.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

Page 7

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 6 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 February 2018

DECISION:

That planning permission be granted subject to the Conditions listed at Section 9 of 
the report.

(Moved by Councillor Seymour, seconded by Councillor Drury)

92. PLANNING APPEALS 

Councillors considered the report of the Development Manager which provided an 
update on recent appeal decisions.

DECISION:

That the report be noted.

93. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were no questions.

94. PLANNING UPDATES. 

There were no planning updates.

95. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were no urgent items.

(The meeting ended at 8.30 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 8



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H09-0863-17

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: David Gedney -  Senior Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H09-0863-17

Application Number: H09-0863-17 DDate Received: 13 September 2017

Application Type: OUTLINE

Description: Residential development (7 plots) including demolition of existing site buildings

Location: SWEPSTONES LTD 115 - 119 BATTLEFIELDS LANE NORTH HOLBEACH

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Swepstone AAgent: Mike Sibthorp Planning

Ward: Holbeach Hurn WWard Councillors: Cllr C N Worth

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 Policy issues that warrant Committee consideration.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 Outline planning permission is sought for residential development (7 dwellings), with all matters
reserved for subsequent approval. The application is accompanied by an indicative layout plan.

2.2 The site is outside Holbeach Settlement Limit as defined within the South Holland Local Plan,
2006 and South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011- 2036 (Publication Version - March 2017). It
is within Flood Zone 3 on the Environment Agency's Flood Map and within an area identified as
"Danger for Some" within the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.

3.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 The site (some 0.59 ha) is a triangular piece of land with existing trees/hedging along its
perimeter. It is presently occupied by industrial buildings used by Swepstones Ltd, who are pie
manufacturers and suppliers.

3.2 A row of semi-detached houses are situated to the north-east along Battlefields Lane North.
Agricultural land is situated opposite and the A17 to the south.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1 The Development Plan

South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006Page 9

Agenda Item 5.



The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

Policy SG1 - General Sustainable Development
Policy SG2 - Distribution of Development
Policy SG3 - Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SG4 - Development in the Countryside
Policy SG11 - Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS)
Policy SG12 - Sewerage and Development
Policy SG13 - Pollution and Contamination
Policy SG14 - Design and Layout of New Development
Policy SG15 - New Development; Facilities for Road Users, Pedestrians and Cyclists
Policy SG16 - Parking Standards in New Development
Policy SG17 - Protection of Residential Amenity
Policy SG18 - Landscaping of New Development
Policy HS4 - New Housing in Spalding and the Area Centres
Policy HS7 -- New Housing in the Open Countryside including Other Rural Settlements
Policy EC3 - Existing Employment Areas/Premises

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraphs 7, 8, 14 and 17;
Sections 6, 7, 10 and 11.

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 H09-0360-94 - Transport Depot, Battlefields Lane - Refused July 1994

H09-0043-95 - Pie and pastry building, Former L. C. C. Highways Depot - Granted March 1995.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 Holbeach Parish Council

Realise that this building is no longer required, and therefore support its removal and future use
of the land. Land should be checked before any building works are commenced.

6.2 Highways/SUDs

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission. When a reserved matters application is
submitted, details relating to the reinstatement of the footway across the existing site access
should be provided.

Page 10



6.3 Environment Agency

Request that dwellings be two storey and finished floor levels be no lower than 500mm above
existing ground level with flood resilience and resistance measures.

6.4 South Holland Internal Drainage Board

Watercourse along western boundary is the Board's maintained Battlefields Northern
Watercourse. 9 metre byelaw therefore applies.

6.5 SHDC Environmental Protection

Due to the previous use of the site request a contaminated land condition for this application in
order to protect the end user.

6.6 LCC Archaeology

No input.

6.7 LCC Education

No request because scheme is less than 10 dwellings.

6.8 NHS England

Will not be putting in a section 106 tender for a development of 7 dwellings.

6.9 Lincolnshire Police

No objections in principle. Recommend measures to help reduce the opportunity for crime and
increase the safety and sustainability of the development.

6.10 Public

The owner/occupiers of 129 Battlefield Lane object on the following grounds (summarised):

Overdevelopment of the site - development recently permitted further down the road solely for a
single bungalow on a larger site; Set a precedent, including large field opposite, leading to an
inevitable pressure on the Washway Road/A17 junction, which is already a nightmare to cross
and a significant accident black spot; Increased traffic in Battlefields Lane. Unlike Battlefields
Lane South, there is no footpath outside the Northern side of the street, so traffic is pulling out
from drives directly into the road. The road currently has a 40mph speed limit which has been
used by some drivers to the limit, with several near misses. Urge the council, if they approve
this application, to put a 30mph limit in place to protect pedestrians and local residents from this
danger.

6.11 Information from Applicant's Agent (summarised)

The property has been on the market for 2 years. It has been advertised for sale based upon
the existing commercial site use, and whilst there have been 4 viewings of the property, there
has been no interest in the property for its existing use, in terms of offers. This would suggest
that there is no interest in the building for commercial use. I attach a statement of marketing
activity that was provided by the sales agents a short period of time before the application was
submitted. There have been no expressions of interest since that time.

Moreover, the development may be regarded as a non-conforming use; the vicinity of the site is
residential in character and residential use would represent a more appropriate, compatible use
of the site.

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Page 11



7.1 The main issues in this case are:

- Whether the proposal would be a sustainable form of development taking into consideration
economic, social and environmental factors, including the development's effect upon the
character and appearance of the locality;
- The likely impact upon the amenity of nearby residents;
- Highway safety;
- Other material considerations such as flooding, drainage and contamination.

7.2 Housing Policy/Sustainability

7.3 The site is located outside Holbeach Development Boundary as defined in the South Holland
Local Plan, 2006 and also the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 (Publication
Version March 2017). The latter currently carries limited weight. Policy HS7 of the SHLP
indicates that new residential development is normally only allowed in such locations if it is
proven essential to meet the needs of rural workers, or the proposal is for small scale rural
exception affordable housing that complies with Local Plan Policy HS9. Neither is applicable in
this case.

7.4 However, the Council does not currently have a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites.
Paragraph 49 of the Framework states that relevant policies for the supply of housing should
not be considered up to date if a local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply
of deliverable housing sites.

7.5 Paragraph 49 of the Framework goes on to stress that, in the absence of a five year supply,
housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Paragraph 14 also states that there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development and, where the relevant policies are out of date, planning permission
should be granted, unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework.
Paragraphs 7 and 8 explain that the three mutually dependant dimensions to sustainable
development are social, economic and environmental.

7.6 An Economic Role - the proposal would contribute towards housing supply and future
occupants may work locally and support local services and make a contribution to the local
economy. There may also be employment opportunities associated with the construction, albeit
in the short term.

7.7 The proposal would result in the loss of employment premises. However, the applicant's agent
has submitted marketing information indicating that i) there is no demand for a commercial use,
and ii) it is a non-conforming use given the residential characteristics of the locality. Further
details are outlined earlier within the report (see information from applicant).

7.8 A Social Role - The site adjoins the existing built-up area of Holbeach, albeit on the opposite
side of the A17. The proposal would make a contribution to the supply of housing required to
meet the needs of present and future generations. Also, the site is accessible to existing
services and facilities within Holbeach on foot or by cycle, although future occupiers would have
to cross the A17 via a pedestrian refuge island.

7.9 An Environmental Role - The site is a brownfield site within an existing frontage on the north-
western side of Battlefields Lane. The existing use is within a residential area and is non-
conforming. The proposed dwellings would replace existing commercial buildings upon site. As
a consequence the proposal would not materially harm the existing character/appearance of the
locality and would constitute an enhancement from an environmental point of view.

7.10 Residential Amenity

7.11 Semi-detached houses are situated to the north-east and the A17 to the south beyond a wide
tree lined verge. It is considered that the proposed use would have less of an impact upon
neighbouring residents than the present use in terms of matters such as privacy, noise and
disturbance, etc.

Page 12



7.12 Given the location of the A17 to the south it is recommended that an acoustic assessment be
carried out to protect the amenity of future occupiers,. This could be addressed by means of a
safeguarding condition.

7.13 Highway Issues

7.14 Vehicular access to the site is via Washway Road and not directly from the A17. Concerns have
been raised on highway grounds. However, the proposal would arguably lead to a reduction in
traffic, and certainly less industrial traffic. The County Highways Authority does not wish to
restrict the grant of permission on highway safety grounds. They have recommended that when
a reserved matters application is submitted it should include details of re-instatement of the
footway across the existing site access.

7.15 Other Matters

7.16 Flood Risk - The site is in Flood Zone 3 within the Environment Agency's Flood Zone Maps. The
hazard mapping within South Holland's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) categorises
the site as "danger for some". However, the site is a brownfield site and the Authority has a
shortfall of housing sites within the district. There are limited sites within the area that are more
suitable, deliverable, sustainable and sequentially preferable in flood risk terms. In terms of the
exceptions test, the Environment Agency has recommended that finished floor levels be set
500mm above existing ground level and the dwellings be two storey.

7.17 Drainage - The application form indicates that foul water would be disposed of via a mains
sewer. Soakaways would be utilised for the disposal of surface water. A South Holland Internal
Drainage Board maintained drain runs along the western boundary.

7.18  Conclusion

The site adjoins the existing built-up area of Holbeach, albeit on the opposite side of the A17.
The proposal would make a contribution to the supply of housing required to meet the needs of
present and future generations. Also, the site is accessible to existing services and facilities
within Holbeach. The proposal would constitute an enhancement environmentally. Although the
proposal would result in the loss of employment premises this is outweighed by the
aforementioned factors.

7.19 Moreover, the development would not have a material effect upon the amenity of nearby
residents. The County Highways Authority has not objected on highway safety grounds. Flood
risk and drainage can be addressed by means of conditions.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 Grant permission subject to those Conditions listed in Section 9 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than three years beginning
with the date of this permission, and the development must be begun before the expiration of
two years from the final approval of reserved matters or in the case of approval on different
dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: As required by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 13



2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
Site Location Plan (Plan Ref. MSP.1437/001);
1:200 Site Layout Plan;
Flood Risk Assessment by Geoff Beel Consultancy (ref. GCB/Bliss) dated June 2017.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. No development shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority of all details of the following matters:
i) the layout, scale and external appearance of building(s), including a schedule of external
materials to be used;
ii) the means of access to the site;
iii) the landscaping of the site;
iv) the means of sewage and surface water disposal;
v) the existing and proposed site levels and floor levels of the buildings and hard surfaced
areas.

Reason: The application was submitted in outline only and the above details are required to
enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the detailed design, appearance and layout of the
development as well as ensure that appropriate access and services are provided to serve the
development.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG12, SG13, SG14 and SG18 of the
South Holland Local Plan, 2006 and national guidance contained in Section 10 of the National
Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

4. Before the commencement of the development beyond oversite a scheme of landscaping and
tree planting for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. It shall include:
i) Details of the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all the trees, together with
details of post-planting maintenance;
ii) Details of which of the existing trees on site are to be retained or removed.
Such scheme as is approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be carried out in its entirety
within a period of 12 months beginning with the date on which development is commenced.  All
trees, shrubs and bushes shall be maintained by the owner or owners of the land on which they
are situated for the period of five years beginning with the date of completion of the scheme and
during that period all losses shall be made good as and when necessary.

Note: The applicant is recommended to employ a qualified and experienced landscape designer
to produce a landscaping scheme for the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is adequately landscaped, in the interests of its visual
amenity and that of the area in which it is set.  This issue is integral to the development and
therefore full details need to be finalised prior to the commencement of works.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG18 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

Page 14



5. Where trees are shown to be retained on site they shall be protected during construction work
as follows:

i)chestnut pale or similar fencing 1.5 metres in height shall be provided around the trees to be
retained before development is commenced at a minimum distance from the trunks equal to the
spread of the crowns of the trees, or in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No materials, equipment, site huts, fuels or other
items shall be placed or stored within the areas enclosed by the fencing so erected and the
ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made,
ii)no burning of materials or other items shall take place within 3 metres of the crown spread of
any of the trees to be retained;
iii)no services shall be routed under the spread of the crowns of the trees to be retained, unless
agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority;
iv)no retained tree shall be cut down, up-rooted, destroyed, topped or lopped unless first agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority;
v)if any tree which is to be retained dies or is to be removed it shall be replaced within six
months thereafter with a tree of such size and species which shall be first be agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the protection of trees on the site.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG18 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006 and national guidance contained in Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
2012.

6. Prior to its installation, details of the proposed boundary treatment/screening, including a
schedule of materials, and details of the size and species of any hedging, shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the details so approved shall be
implemented in full before the development is first brought into use.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the development and the visual
amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG14 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

7. Before any dwelling is occupied the existing buildings upon the site shall be demolished and
associated rubble removed from the site.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development in the interest of visual and residential amenity.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG14 and SG17 of the South Holland
Local Plan, 2006.

8. The development hereby permitted in outline is limited to a maximum of 7 frontage dwellings
and a combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000sqm.

Reason: In the interests of the character of the area and because a development of greater
than 10 dwellings and 1000sqm floorspace would be expected to make an affordable housing
contribution, or demonstrate why it would not be viable, in accordance with national advice
contained in the Planning Practice Guidance.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG14 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006, Section 7 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 2012 and national guidance on
planning obligations contained in the Planning Practice Guidance.

9. When the application is made for approval of the 'Reserved Matters' that application shall show
details of the reinstatement of the footway across the existing site access. The re-instated
footway shall be provided before any dwelling is occupied and shall be kept permanently free
for such use at all times thereafter.

Reason: To ensure safe access to the site and each dwelling/building in the interests of
residential amenity, convenience and safety.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG14 and SG15 of the South Holland
Local Plan, 2006

Page 15



10. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until a scheme to deal with any
contamination of land or pollution of controlled waters has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) and until the measures approved in that scheme
have been implemented.  The scheme shall include all of the following measures:

i) a desk-top study carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of  contamination
and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to the site.  The desk-top study shall
establish a 'conceptual site model' and identify all plausible pollutant linkages.  Furthermore, the
assessment shall set objectives for intrusive site investigation works/Quantitative Risk
Assessment (or state if none required).  Two full copies of the desk- top study and a non-
technical summary shall be submitted to the LPA without delay upon completion.
ii) if identified as being required following the completion of the desk-top study, a site
investigation shall be carried out to fully and effectively characterise the nature and extent of
any land contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters.  It shall specifically include a risk
assessment that adopts the Source-Pathway-Receptor principle, in order that any potential risks
are adequately assessed taking into account the sites existing status and proposed new use.
Two full copies of the site investigation and findings shall be forwarded to the LPA without delay
upon completion.
iii) thereafter, a written method statement detailing the remediation requirements for land
contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the LPA, and all requirements shall be implemented and completed to
the satisfaction of the LPA.  No deviation shall be made from this scheme.  If during
redevelopment contamination not previously considered is identified, then the LPA shall be
notified immediately and no further work shall be carried out until a method statement detailing
a scheme for dealing with the suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the LPA.
iv) two full copies of a full closure report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA. The report shall provide verification that the required works regarding contamination have
been carried out in accordance with the approved Method Statement(s).   Post-remediation
sampling and monitoring results shall be included in the closure report to demonstrate that the
required remediation has been fully met.

Note
The applicant is advised that the phased risk assessment required by the Contaminated Land
Scheme Condition should be carried out in accordance with the procedural guidance of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 Part 11A.
The applicant's attention is also drawn to the document entitled "Developing Land Within
Lincolnshire - A guide to submitting planning applications to develop land that may be
contaminated", which can be obtained through the Local Environmental Health Department.

Reason: To assess whether the site is polluted and to address any pollution to ensure a
satisfactory development.  This issue is integral to the development and therefore full details
need to be finalised prior to the commencement of works.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG13 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

11. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the measures set out
in the Flood Risk Assessment forming part of this planning application, unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. In particular, the following measures shall be fully
implemented before the property is first occupied:
- Finished floor levels shall be set 500mm above existing ground level;
- All dwellings shall be two storey;
- Flood resilience and resistance measures shall be incorporated within the development up to
300mm above finished floor level.

Note: Future occupants are advised to sign up to the Environment Agency's free Floodline
Warnings Direct Service.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase the risk of flooding or be at risk of
flooding.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with national guidance contained in Section 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

Page 16



12. Before development commences on site, a report prepared by a suitably qualified noise
consultant shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
report shall identify any measures or works necessary to ensure that there is no possible
nuisance caused to future occupiers of the properties by virtue of their close proximity to the
A17. Those measures and work so approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be
implemented in full before the dwellings to which they relate are first brought into use.

Reason: To protect the future occupiers from noise from the nearby A17.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG13, SG14 and SG17 of the South
Holland Local Plan 2006.

13. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and by identifying matters of concern within the application and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local
Planning Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

14. Prior to the submission of details for any access works within the public highway you must
contact the Head of Highways - on 01522 782070 for application, specification and construction
information.

15. Please contact Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks & Permitting team on 01522 782070 to
discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will be required in
the public highway in association with this application. This will enable Lincolnshire County
Council  to assist you in the coordination and timings of such works.

16. Your attention is drawn to the attached advice from Lincolnshire Police and the South Holland
Internal Drainage Board dated 19 September 2017 and 2 October 2017 respectively.

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 17



Page 18



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H16-1053-17

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: Joan Isus -  Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H16-1053-17

Application Number: H16-1053-17 DDate Received: 6 November 2017

Application Type: FULL

Description: Residential development - comprising 2 semi-detached dwellings

Location: Adjacent: 37 St Pauls Road Spalding Lincs

Applicant: S Dungarwalla AAgent: Moulton Land and Planning Ltd

Ward: Spalding St Pauls WWard Councillors: Cllr D Ashby
Cllr P A Williams

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 Objections received and issues raised merit Committee consideration.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This is a full planning application for the erection of a pair of semi-detached dwellings at the
land adjacent to 37 St Pauls Road, Spalding. The principle of development for such proposal
was previously granted under the outline application reference H16-0686-11.

2.2 The pair of semi-detached dwellings would be erected behind the existing laurel hedge on the
front boundary line and in close proximity to the rear of the retail unit at Holbeach Road. Two
rear gardens would occupy the remainder of the depth of the site. A C-shaped driveway would
run along the east side of the plot from the forecourt parking at the front of 37 St Pauls Road to
the rear of the garden.

2.3 The adjacent residential property at No.37 is also under the applicant's ownership.

3.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 The site is currently vacant and constrained by the rear of the shop premises at 89 Holbeach
Road to the west, a public open space with footpath and cycle lane to Commercial/Holbeach
Road to the north and the residential property at 37 St Pauls Road to the west. The rear
gardens of the dwellings at No.1 and 2 Barge Close lies to the south.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Page 19

Agenda Item 6.



4.1 The Development Plan

South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006

The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

Policy SG1 General Sustainable Development
Policy SG14 Design and Layout of New Development
Policy SG15 New Development: Facilities for Road Users, Pedestrians and
Policy SG17 Protection of Residential Amenity
Policy SG18 Landscaping of New Development
HS4 New Housing in Spalding and the Area Centres

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles
Section 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Section 7. Requiring good design
Section 10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 H16-0686-11 - Outline Planning Application for Residential development - erection of pair of
semi-detached dwellings - Approved 2 November 2011

5.2 H16-0722-10 - Outline Planning Application for Residential development - one dwelling -
Approved 10 March 2011

5.3 H16-0187-06 - Outline Planning Application for Residential development - erection of dwelling -
Refused 6 April 2006.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 Ward member

Cllr D Ashby no objection but is in favour of preserving the tree.

6.2 Environment Agency

No objection. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) prepared by S.M.Hemmings, dated 19 September 2017.

6.3 Lincolnshire County Council as Highways and Local Flood Authority

Page 20



No objection.

6.4 SHDC Environmental Protection

A contaminated land condition is required

6.5 Public

Three objections have been received on the following issues:
·Off road parking pressure at the end of St Paul's Road
·Overlooking/loss of privacy to the properties at the rear of the curtilage.
·The preservation of the tree potentially impacts on access to the driveway.

6.6 Applicant's Agent

Has confirmed that the single storey outbuilding to 37 will be demolished. This will remove the
potential of conflict between residents and vehicles and any rear garden gate access could also
be set back from the driveway. Therefore would be agreeable to the application being
Conditional upon removal of this outbuilding and its side door.

If there any concerns about width of access there is a minimum of 4metres available between
dwelling and boundary and the drop kerb access is already in existence. As mentioned if you
look on google earth street scene the imagery from 2009 shows a touring caravan and transit
van using the drive and side access so really cannot see any issue with access width etc. (LCC
Highways also see no problem).

The application was registered on 6th November 2017 and is following the same principles as
the Outline Planning Consent that was previously granted on this site. My client is keen to
redevelop this site and carry out relative refurbishment to the adjacent properties and
boundaries under their ownership at the earliest opportunity.

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The key considerations in the determination of this application are: design and layout; impact
upon residential amenity; flood risk; highways and parking; impact upon mature lime tree.

7.2 Design and layout

7.3 The scale and massing of the pair of semi-detached dwellings is commensurate with the
neighbouring properties and would not be detrimental to the vicinity.  Outline planning
permission has previously been granted for a pair of semi-detached properties on this site.

7.4 The design proposed for the dwellings match the existing in the locality. The type of residential
development (two-storey semi-detached dwellings) has been observed along St Pauls Road.
External materials for the dwellings will be in keeping with the surrounding area using red facing
bricks under a slate coloured roofing tile. The drawings submitted with the planning application
show external cornices above the doors on the front elevation. This is considered to provide
higher quality design in the area being still sympathetic to the variety of designs, ages and
appearance of the houses nearby.

7.5 The scheme is designed so that the residential space (the pair of dwellings itself and the rear
private gardens) is separated but aligned with the means of access to the site which runs along
the east. The layout of the development was designed following the features of the site. The
driveway is designed from the existing vehicular access and accordingly to the curtilage
boundary with No. 37. The harnessing of the space ensures that there is enough room for
turning/manoeuvring/parking cars within the site.

7.6 Whilst the finished floor levels would be raised to mitigate against flood risk, given the nature of
the site and its location in relation to nearby properties it is considered this may be achieved
without harm to the appearance of the street scene or to the amenities of adjacent properties.

Page 21



7.7 Impact upon residential amenity

7.8 The separation distances between the houses and the site boundaries are sufficient to ensure
that no harm to the neighbouring properties would occur.

7.9 No prominent window would be opened on the side elevations so there would not be any
adverse impact upon the amenity of the shopping unit to the east and the property at No. 37 to
the west.

7.10 The front elevation of the dwellings would be 14.83 metres set back from the public highway
whereas the opposing windows on the properties at No.1 and 2 Barge Close are 17.78 metres
away from the rear windows of the proposed buildings. At these distances, it is concluded that
any overlooking effect would be unlikely to cause a loss of privacy to residents.

7.11 Although some concerns has been raised regarding the movement of four cars entering and
exiting the site in relation to the amenity of the residents, no unbearable harm upon the amenity
would be expected to such an extent to refuse or alter the proposal. As pointed out above, the
layout of the scheme has been appropriately designed harnessing the site features to provide a
spacious driveway and four car parking spaces necessary for the intended occupiers of the
dwellings harnessing the site features.

7.12 The proposal anticipates a gated access from the driveway within the application's site to the
garden of No.37 just after the rear extension of such property.

7.13 Some concerns were raised regarding the compatibility of this gated access with the door on
the side elevation of the rear extension of No. 37 where the driveway would run along.

7.14 The agent has confirmed that such door is redundant although the applicant has the willingness
to demolish the extension to overcome any potential conflict with the property at No. 37 and the
proposed scheme.

7.15 Flood Risk

7.16 In order to mitigate against flood risk the dwellings would have a finished floor level of 5.0m
AOD, 0.8 to 1.1m above existing ground levels, with the gardens sloping down to 4.0m AOD.
The driveway would be at 3.75m AOD.  By comparison No.37 is 3.68m AOD.  The site is within
Flood Zone 3, as is the majority of Spalding, hence it is considered that the sequential test has
been passed.  The development would provide some wider sustainability benefits to the
community by helping meet housing need and tidying up an unsightly site.  As such it is
considered the exceptions test has been passed.

7.17 Highways and parking

7.18 A driveway is proposed from the existing dropped kerb on St Paul's Road running the east of
the site to the rear of the boundary fence of No.37.

7.19 The driveway also includes one forecourt parking space at the front of No. 37, two spaces right
next to the plot boundary of the eastern house of the proposed scheme and two more at the
end of the driveway just behind the rear fence of No. 37.

7.20 The width at the beginning of the driveway is 4 metres and increases up to 5.87 metres at the
end of the private road. Two side car parking spaces would be 2.40 metres wide. The
dimensions and layout are deemed to be acceptable for turning/manoeuvring/parking cars
within the site. No objection has been made by Lincolnshire County Council as Highways
Authority.

7.21 Alternatively, off street car parking cannot be feasible, need at least all four car parking spaces.
St Pauls Road is an enclosed road for cars and a high demand for motor vehicles was observed
while conducting the site visit.

Page 22



7.22 Impact upon mature lime tree

7.23 The lime tree at the front of the driveway has no impact to the highway safety of road users
going through the driveway for entering or exiting the site.

7.24 This constitutes an issue that was further discussed with the parties involved the assessment of
the proposal. No objection regarding the tree has been made by Lincolnshire County Council as
Highways Authority.

7.25 Conclusion

7.26 The design and layout of the proposed residential scheme is considered to be acceptable. The
scale and massing of the detached dwellings are commensurate with the size of the site and
neighbouring properties. No unbearable loss of amenity is anticipated after carrying out the
development. Despite some concerns regarding the driveway and parking space provision, the
layout of the private road that serves access to the site is considered to be acceptable. Any
material alteration can be made if there is any potential conflict with the driveway and the
adjacent property at No. 37 as expressed by the agent and applicant in order to obtain planning
permission.

7.27 Overall, the proposed development complies with the national and local planning policies
mentioned above.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 AAuthorised to Grant Permission subject to those Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Drw No STP01 pl001 (Location Plan); Drw No STP01 pl002 (Site Layout); Drw No STP01 pl003
(House Design) and Flood Risk Assessment (prepared by S.M.Hemmings, dated 19 September
2017).

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the measures set out
in the Flood Risk Assessment (prepared by S.M.Hemmings, dated 19 September 2017) forming
part of this planning application, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, in particular the following measures shall be fully implemented before the property is
first occupied:

-Finished floor levels will be set no lower than 5.00m AOD, 0.8-1.10m above site levels
-Demountable defences will be installed to all ground floor door opening to 600mm above
finished floor levels.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase the risk of flooding or be at risk of
flooding.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with national guidance contained in Section 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

Page 23



4. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until a scheme to deal with any
contamination of land or pollution of controlled waters has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) and until the measures approved in that scheme
have been implemented.  The scheme shall include all of the following measures:

i) a desk-top study carried out to identify and evaluate all potential sources of  contamination
and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, relevant to the site.  The desk-top study shall
establish a 'conceptual site model' and identify all plausible pollutant linkages.  Furthermore, the
assessment shall set objectives for intrusive site investigation works/Quantitative Risk
Assessment (or state if none required).  Two full copies of the desk- top study and a non-
technical summary shall be submitted to the LPA without delay upon completion.
ii) if identified as being required following the completion of the desk-top study, a site
investigation shall be carried out to fully and effectively characterise the nature and extent of
any land contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters.  It shall specifically include a risk
assessment that adopts the Source-Pathway-Receptor principle, in order that any potential risks
are adequately assessed taking into account the sites existing status and proposed new use.
Two full copies of the site investigation and findings shall be forwarded to the LPA without delay
upon completion.
iii) thereafter, a written method statement detailing the remediation requirements for land
contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the LPA, and all requirements shall be implemented and completed to
the satisfaction of the LPA.  No deviation shall be made from this scheme.  If during
redevelopment contamination not previously considered is identified, then the LPA shall be
notified immediately and no further work shall be carried out until a method statement detailing
a scheme for dealing with the suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the LPA.
iv) two full copies of a full closure report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA. The report shall provide verification that the required works regarding contamination have
been carried out in accordance with the approved Method Statement(s).   Post-remediation
sampling and monitoring results shall be included in the closure report to demonstrate that the
required remediation has been fully met.

Note
The applicant is advised that the phased risk assessment required by the Contaminated Land
Scheme Condition should be carried out in accordance with the procedural guidance of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 Part 11A.
The applicant's attention is also drawn to the document entitled "Developing Land Within
Lincolnshire - A guide to submitting planning applications to develop land that may be
contaminated", which can be obtained through the Local Environmental Health Department.

Reason: To assess whether the site is polluted and to address any pollution to ensure a
satisfactory development.  This issue is integral to the development and therefore full details
need to be finalised prior to the commencement of works.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG13 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

5. Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted beyond oversite a schedule of
external materials of construction of buildings and hard surfaced areas shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be constructed
in accordance with the materials so approved.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the external materials
of construction of the development in the interests of the character and appearance of the
development and the visual amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG14 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

Page 24



6. Mature lime tree on the frontage of 37 St. Pauls Road maintained by South Holland District
Council shall be protected during construction work as follows:

i) The Root Protection Areas of all significant trees should be calculated as in British Standard
BS 5837: 2012 before any heavy equipment is brought on site for clearance. This is to protect
tree canopies and also their roots. The roots can easily be damaged due to the effects of soil
compaction, which can alter the amount of oxygen and water which reaches them.

ii) Where excavations below the canopy of the tree are unavoidable, excavations must be
carried out by hand and any roots encountered over 25 mm in diameter should be retained.
(Where possible, smaller roots should also be retained and great care taken to minimise
damage to them).  If severance is unavoidable, roots must be cut back using a sharp tool to
leave a clean wound to encourage healing.

iii) No retained tree shall be cut down, up-rooted, destroyed, topped or lopped unless first
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

iv) If any tree which is to be retained dies or is to be removed it shall be replaced within six
months thereafter with a tree of such size and species which shall be first be agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

v) A 'no dig' method should be used where roadways/driveways/paths are likely to be in the
Root Protection Areas. A cellular confinement system filled with gravel or other permeable filling
is likely to be appropriate as a surface treatment to help prevent compaction of soil over tree
roots and allow the free flow of water and oxygen. Construction should take note of the
Arboricultural Advisory and Information Service publication: APN 12 Driveways Close to Trees.

vi) The soil levels should not be altered around the base of trees. An increase in soil level
around the base of a tree can make conditions adjacent to the trunk damp and suitable for
fungal growth. It can also increase the distance for water / gaseous exchange to the tree's
roots. Obviously a lowering of the soil level can expose tree roots. Both can be detrimental to
the health of the tree.

vii) When backfilling in a highway situation, or where tar macadam or a hard surface is being
laid, the addition of a granular material mixed with the topsoil or sharp sand (not builders' sand
as it is too fine) around the retained roots is suggested. This should allow the surface to be
compacted for resurfacing without damage to the roots, and should secure a local aerated zone
enabling the roots to survive in the longer term.

viii) Foundations must take into account the presence of existing trees in their mature form, and
of those planted as part of any landscaping scheme.

Reason: To ensure the protection of significant trees adjacent to the site.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG18 of the South Holland Local Plan
2006.

7. Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, the single storey outbuilding
attached to 37 St Pauls Road shall be demolished.

Reason:  To ensure an adequate level of amenity for the occupiers of that dwelling, following
the construction of the shared driveway.
This condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG17 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

8. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

9. Please contact Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks & Permitting team on 01522782070 to
discuss any proposed statutory  utility connectors and any other works which will be required in
the public highway in association with this application. This will enable Lincolnshire County
Council to assist you in the coordination and timings of such works.

Page 25



10. Prior to the submission of details for any access works within the public highway you must
contact the Head of Highways - East on 01522 782070 for application, specification and
construction information.

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H02-1192-17

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: Lucy Buttery -  Senior Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H02-1192-17

Application Number: H02-1192-17 DDate Received: 14 December 2017

Application Type: OUTLINE

Description: Proposed residential development of two detached houses - re-submission of H02-
0536-17

Location: 10 PETERBOROUGH ROAD CROWLAND PETERBOROUGH

Applicant: Amelio Homes Ltd AAgent: Colin Smith

Ward: Crowland and Deeping WWard Councillors: Cllr B Alcock
Cllr J R Astill
Cllr Angela Harrison

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 Objections received and issues raised which merit Committee consideration.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This is an outline planning application, with all matters reserved, for the erection of two
detached houses to the rear of number 10 Peterborough Road, Crowland. Indicative plans
show a pair of detached houses of two storey height, although the design of the dwellings could
be altered at Reserved Matters stage. The site is located within the current settlement boundary
of Crowland as outlined in both the adopted South Holland Local Plan (2006) and the emerging
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (Publication Version, 2017).

3.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 The application site is to the rear of an existing dwelling known as number 10 which is a
detached two-storey house. There is a bungalow to the south side of number 10 and a two-
storey detached dwelling to the north known as 8a. The garden is long with conifers along the
boundary adjacent the bungalow and along the rear boundary with a fence to the other side
adjacent the two storey dwelling known as 8a. 8a is an 'L' shaped property with side windows
from the rear extension facing towards number 10. There are currently no properties to the rear
of the application site, however, full planning permission (H02-1082-15) has been granted for 41
dwellings on this land.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Page 29

Agenda Item 7.



4.1 The Development Plan

South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006

The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

SG1 - General Sustainable Development
SG2 - Distribution of Development
SG3 - Settlement Hierarchy
SG11- Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)
SG12 - Sewerage and Development
SG13 - Pollution and Contamination
SG14 - Design and Layout of New Development
SG15 - New Development: Facilities for Road Users, Pedestrians and Cyclists
SG17 - Protection of Residential Amenity
SG18 - Landscaping of New Development
HS4 - New Housing in Spalding and the Area Centres (non allocated sites)

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles
Section 6 - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Section 7 - Requiring good design

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 H02-0536-17 Residential development of two detached houses. Refused 6 September 2017.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 Crowland Parish Council:

Previous proposal would have resulted in overdevelopment of the site and this application is the
same. Houses are close together and close to the site boundary. Would prefer one high quality
single dwelling or two 2-bed semi-detached dwellings.

6.2 North Level IDB:

Have no objection.

6.3 Highways / SUDS:

Do not wish to restrict the granting of permission.

Page 30



6.4 Historic Environment Officer:

Confirms no archaeological input is required.

6.5 Public:

An objection has been received from the neighbouring property known as 8A. The points raised
are as follows:
- Previous application was refused due to having a harmful effect upon the amenity of occupiers
of nearby dwellings, by virtue of the frequency of noise and disturbance from passing vehicles
and pedestrians.
- The noise assessment does not demonstrate the noise generated from vehicles and
pedestrians accessing either existing or proposed dwellings.
- On the day of the noise assessment, workmen were erecting a new shed in the garden,
resulting in increased background noise readings taken.
- Two 4x4 vehicles on our driveway - only one of these vehicles is used at a time.
- The noise assessment does not address the original reason for refusal relating to the "lack of
residential amenity", due to three upstairs windows (bedrooms) and three downstairs windows
(kitchen) plus the rearmost part of our garden are the areas of our property will be impacted
through additional noise.

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 Key issues for consideration regarding this application are:
- Character and appearance,
- Residential amenity, and
- Noise associated with the extended driveway

7.2 Character and appearance:

There is a variety of housing in the area with bungalows and houses of differing size and
design. The indicative design of the two detached dwellings would therefore appear acceptable.
However, all matters are reserved and the suggested design could potentially be altered at that
stage.

7.3 In addition, backland development is a feature along this part of Peterborough Road. Therefore
the proposal for backland development in this location appears in keeping with similar
developments such as the rear of 4 Peterborough Road (see H02-0657-12), Kennulphs Close
and the relationship between 14a and 14 Peterborough Road. As a result, the proposal appears
to conform with Local Plan Policy SG14 which considers the existing pattern of development.

7.4 Likely impacts on residential amenity:

The minimum distance between 8a and the proposed development on the indicative drawings is
approximately 26 metres, which is considered a sufficient distance to protect privacy. Parts of
the neighbour's garden would be less private, but not all. The applicant has stated in the Design
and Access Statement that side windows would have obscure glazing which would lessen the
impact on residential amenity by ensuring that some parts of the garden would remain private
even after development. This can be conditioned to remain as such. Furthermore, a
landscaping condition could be used to create more privacy along the boundary for the
neighbouring property while still enabling development.

7.5 The proposed dwellings would be erected at least 1 metre from the joint boundary with 8a which
is considered an acceptable distance for this type of development. In addition, there are other
examples of properties erected close to boundaries within the vicinity such as 4a, 4b and 14,
and so the proposed development would not be dissimilar to other properties in the locality.

7.6 Noise associated with the extended driveway:

The proposed access drive would continue the existing driveway to the rear of the existing
dwelling. Number 8a also access their garage to the rear of their property. A previous
application (H02-0536-17) for the erection of two detached houses on the site was refused at
Planning Committee on 6th September 2017 due to the possible harmful effect of noise andPage 31



disturbance from passing vehicles and pedestrians. The applicant has therefore resubmitted the
application again with a Noise Impact Assessment (NIA).

7.7 The NIA was carried out on a random day to assess the noise potential from the proposed
driveway. The neighbour insists the NIA coincided with the construction of a shed which would
have increased background noise. Average background noise was recorded as 54.1 decibels.
There is no indication, however, that a shed was being erected at the same time as the NIA was
conducted.

7.8 The NIA also observed 'On the driveway of No.8a were two Land Rover 4x4 vehicles which are
likely to be noisier in operation than a normal road car and these obviously are driven up and
down the driveway to and from the double garage located halfway down the rear garden'. The
neighbour pointed out that only one of these vehicles would be used at any one time.

7.9 It was also concluded in the assessment that 'The prevailing background noise at the site
strongly suggests that the "frequency of noise and disturbance from passing vehicles and
pedestrians" using the proposed driveway would have minimal impact on the perceived LAeq t
of the occupiers of either No.8a or No.10. The environmental noise for occupants of all the
dwellings in the locality is dominated by road traffic noise'.

7.10 Conclusion:

The previous application for this site was refused solely on the basis that the proposed
residential development would have a harmful effect upon the amenity of occupiers of nearby
dwellings, in particular No's 10 and 8a Peterborough Road, by virtue of the frequency of noise
and disturbance from passing vehicles and pedestrians. However, a Noise Impact Assessment
submitted with this application has concluded that the impact of this driveway would be similar
to the impact of the driveway belonging to the neighbouring property, which is also adjacent the
boundary fence. It is accepted that there would be additional vehicles using the access
driveway, but it is also reasonable to assume that people tend to enter or leave their property
only once or twice per day, and vehicle movements would be spread out rather than all
together.

7.11 In respect of character and appearance, there are other backland developments in this area
and  the proposal is no different to the accessway for Kennulphs Close nearby, or the access
road to the side of the adjacent bungalow known as number 12 leading to number 14. The
proposed development for up to two dwellings is therefore considered acceptable when taking
into account the existing character and appearance of the local area, and pattern of
development.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 Grant Permission subject to those Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than three years beginning
with the date of this permission, and the development must be begun before the expiration of
two years from the final approval of reserved matters or in the case of approval on different
dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: As required by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
TK1/01, TK1/02 and TK1/03, and Flood Risk Assessment (prepared by CJS Planning and
Building Services).

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 32



3. No development shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority of all details of the following matters:
i) the layout, scale and external appearance of building(s), including a schedule of external
materials to be used;
ii) the means of access to the site;
iii) the landscaping of the site;
iv) the means of sewage and surface water disposal;
v) the existing and proposed site levels and floor levels of the buildings and hard surfaced
areas.

Reason: The application was submitted in outline only and the above details are required to
enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the detailed design, appearance and layout of the
development as well as ensure that appropriate access and services are provided to serve the
development.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG12, SG13, SG14 and SG18 of the
South Holland Local Plan, 2006 and national guidance contained in Section 10 of the National
Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

4. When application is made to the Local Planning Authority for approval of reserved matters, that
application shall be accompanied by a scheme of landscaping and tree planting indicating, inter
alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all trees in respect of the land to
which that application relates, together with details of post-planting maintenance and such a
scheme shall require the approval of the Local Planning Authority before any development is
commenced.  Such scheme as is approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be carried out
in its entirety within a period of twelve months beginning with the date on which development is
commenced.  All trees, shrubs and bushes shall be maintained by the owner or owners of the
land on which they are situated for the period of five years beginning with the date of completion
of the scheme and during that period all losses shall be made good as and when necessary.

Note: The applicant is recommended to employ a qualified and experienced landscape designer
to produce a landscaping scheme for the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is adequately landscaped, in the interests of its visual
amenity and that of the area in which it is set.  This issue is integral to the development and
therefore full details need to be finalised prior to the commencement of works.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG18 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

5. Prior to its installation, details of the proposed boundary treatment, including a schedule of
materials, and details of the size and species of any hedging, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the details so approved shall be
implemented in full before the development is first brought into use.

Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the development and the visual
amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG14 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

6. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the measures set out
in the Flood Risk Assessment (prepared by CJS Planning and Building Services) forming part of
this planning application before the property is first occupied.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase the risk of flooding or be at risk of
flooding.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with national guidance contained in Section 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

Page 33



7. Before the development is commenced beyond oversite, full details of the proposed soakaway
system for the disposal of surface water from the development hereby permitted, including
percolation test results, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.  Should the percolation test results be considered unacceptable by the Local
Planning Authority details of an alternative means of providing for surface water drainage shall
be submitted for consideration.  The approved means of surface water drainage shall be
implemented in full before the development hereby permitted is first brought into use.

Reason: To ensure that the site is adequately drained, to avoid pollution, and to prevent
increased risk of flooding.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG11 and SG13 of the South Holland
Local Plan, 2006 and national guidance contained in Section 10 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, 2012

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015, (or any Order or Statutory Instrument revoking and re-enacting that
Order), none of the following developments or alterations shall be carried out.

i) the erection of freestanding curtilage buildings or structures including car ports, garages,
sheds, greenhouses, pergolas or raised decks;
ii) the erection of house extensions including dormer windows, conservatories, garages, car
ports, porches or pergolas;
iii) alterations including the installation of replacement or additional windows or doors and the
installation of roof windows.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the future extension
and alteration of the development, in the interests of its architectural and visual integrity, levels
of residential amenity and the visual amenity and character of the area within which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policies SG14 and SG17 of the South Holland
Local Plan, 2006.

9. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H01-1017-17

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: Joan Isus -  Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H01-1017-17

Application Number: H01-1017-17 DDate Received: 24 October 2017

Application Type: FULL

Description: Erection of self-contained building to be used as annexe

Location: 24 CLARKSON AVENUE COWBIT SPALDING

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Carrick AAgent: Julian Warrick

Ward: Cowbit, Weston and Moulton WWard Councillors: Cllr R Grocock
Cllr A Casson
Cllr A R Woolf

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 Issue raised merit Committee consideration and the Environment Agency maintains its
objection on the basis that the revised Flood Risk Assessment report still fails to provide
appropriate mitigation measures given the flood depth on the site.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This is a full planning application for an erection of a self-contained residential building to be
used as an annex to the property at 24 Clarkson Avenue, Cowbit.  The proposed building would
be 9.325 metres by 9.665 metres with a ridge height of 7.183 metres.  It would have the
appearance of a chalet bungalow with 2 dormer windows to the front roof slope and a recessed
balcony to the rear plus a roof light to the bathroom.  Solar panels are proposed to the rear roof
slope.  The accommodation would comprise on the ground floor, a kitchen diner, lounge, hobby
room and utility with a bedroom, dressing area and bathroom plus store area upstairs.

2.2 The proposed materials would be cream render walls with red brick detailing, a slate style roof
and timber boarded dormers.

2.3 The aim of the proposed development is to provide accommodation to the applicant's parents
whose health conditions are increasingly deteriorating. Both individuals are currently living far
away and need extra care from the applicant. It has been explicitly stated there is no intention to
sell the annex as a separate dwelling.

2.4 The site location is within the defined settlement limits for Cowbit as per the South Holland
Local Plan 2006.

Page 37

Agenda Item 8.



33.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 Three pairs of semi-detached dwellings with grey-stone cladding surround the end of cul-de-sac
Clarkson Avenue. One of them is No. 24 which is the applicant's property and the site where the
proposal would be developed is the garden adjacent to the southern elevation and fairly set
back from the road.

3.2 The site is heavily concealed with mature hedgerows and overgrown shrubs.

3.3 Houses of similar type and appearance are along the eastern side of the road. More variety of
materials and appearances has been observed on the opposite side.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1 The Development Plan

South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006

The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

Policy SG1 General Sustainable Development
Policy SG14 Design and Layout of New Development
Policy  SG17 Protection of Residential Amenity

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles
Section 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Section 7. Requiring good design
Section 10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 H01-0148-15 Single storey rear extension and detached garage - Approved 15 April 2015.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 Environment Agency

Maintain objection after re-consultation on a revised Flood Risk Assessment, conclude that "the
proposed mitigation, in terms of finished floor level, is inadequate to resist the expected depths
of flooding over the lifetime of the development" and finished floor levels should be set 1m
above the ground level and flood resilient construction 300mm above the predicted floor level

Page 38



(0.5-1m)."

6.2 Lincolnshire C.C Highways

No objection subject to a condition that the proposed annexe be used only in connection with
the existing dwelling and not sold off as a separate entity.

6.3 Lincolnshire C.C Historic Environment

No archaeological input required.

6.4 SHDC Environmental Protection

Based on the available information, no need for a contaminated land condition.

6.5 Public

No representations received.

6.6 Applicant's Flood Risk Consultant

"FFL 500 mm above ground level with an additional 500 mm of flood resistant construction and
demountable defences" are acceptable "to ensure the proposed building is watertight up to 1.00
m above ground level". However, the consultant states that the EA "is referring to the South
East Lincs SFRA which specifically refers to developments being 1.00 m above GFL" when the
site have flood depth lower than 1m and remarks that "the site is further protected by the Cowbit
Bank which is nowadays governed by legislation of the Reservoirs Act 1975 against a 1 in 1000
year flood event".

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The key considerations in the determination of this application are the principle of development,
flood risk and mitigation and impact upon residential amenity.

7.2 Principle of development

7.3 The site location is within the defined settlement limits for Cowbit as set out in South Holland
Local Plan 2006. The principle of development therefore is acceptable unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.  This is an unusual case given the scale of the proposed
annexe accommodation, in relation to the existing property.  It is a detached building with all the
facilities for a separate dwelling.  However, the applicant has put forward supporting evidence
for the need for the accommodation and a condition may be imposed to prevent use as a
separate dwelling.

7.4 Flood risk and mitigation

7.5 According to the UK Government Map for Planning, the site falls within the highest flood risk
probability Flood Zone 3. The lifetime of the proposed development might be around 100 years.

7.6 Considering that the Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) that accompanies the planning application
reveals that the flood risk from any Environment Agency maintained river is very low, due to the
existing defences of the River Welland, Cowbit Washes and the Coronation Channel. The
defences are appropriate to contain any flood risk to 1 to 100 year period. Should a breach of
such defences take place it would be in very extreme conditions and the floodwaters could
affect the development site.

7.7 The proposed development would be out of a Functional Floodplain. The site is in fact protected
by the River Welland and South Holland IDB defences to a 1 to 100 year return period.

Page 39



7.8 The Environment Agency objected to the FRA report on the basis that the residual risk as
shown in the Residual Peak Depth Map - Spalding (2115) 1% fluvial / 0.5 tidal event from the
Update for South Holland Strategic Flood Risk Assessment has not taken into consideration,
hence the flood depth should be 0.5-1m instead of 0.25-0.50m.

7.9 The author of the FRA report stated that "the site is further protected by the Cowbit Bank which
is nowadays governed by legislation of the Reservoirs Act 1975 against a 1 in 1000 year flood
event". In addition to this, the existing defences in the rivers would contribute to retain any
floodplain in 1 to 100 return period.

7.10 The mitigation measures for the development comprise a 500 mm of floor raising plus a further
500 mm of Flood Resistant construction. Considering that the lifetime of the proposed annex
would be around 100 years, the proposed development would not increase the flood risk on the
site and mitigation measures would be acceptable given the potential flood risks on the site.

7.11 Impact upon amenity

7.12 The material increase of a two-storey building would be highly mitigated with mature hedgerows
and two tall trees on the site boundaries. The roof slopes and the roof gables would be the only
part of the structures visible from the adjacent properties. The adjoining properties are not in
close proximity to the annex - the closest one is the bungalow at 18 Parkin Road, 9 metres
away. The visual impact therefore would not be detrimental to such an extent to refuse the
proposal as submitted.

7.13 The arrival of residents in connection with the proposed annex would not increase unbearably
the pressure on the existing vehicular traffic to the site and Clarkson Avenue. The proposed
development includes a front yard where the motor vehicles for the applicant's property No. 24
and the annex could turn and park in a safe and convenient manner.

7.14 Conclusion

7.15 The site location is within the defined settlement limits for Cowbit as set out in South Holland
Local Plan 2006.

7.16 The potential flood risk to the site and the proposed development has been a matter of
discussion between the Environment Agency and the FRA report author. The EA's objection
remains to the report claiming that the flood depths are not appropriate as residual flood has not
been taken into consideration. The mitigation measures therefore shall be proposed accordingly
to the flood risk.

7.17 The residual risk would affect the site later than a 1 to 100 return period and in case of a breach
of the river defences in extreme conditions. Cowbit Bank also protect the site against a 1 in
1000 year flood event and the proposed development has a lifetime of 100 years. The flood risk
assessment would be therefore acceptable and in turn the principle of development on the
application's site.

7.18 With regards to the impact upon the amenity, the scale and massing of the proposed annex
would be fairly commensurate with the size of the plot. Wide separations distances are provided
with the adjoining properties and the boundary treatment would be appropriate to screen heavily
the annex. No significant impact upon the amenity would undermine the amenity of the
residents in neighbouring buildings.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 AAuthorised to Grant Permission subject to those Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

Page 40



1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Drw No J093-PL1 (Block & Location Plans); Drw No J093-PL2 (Plans & Elevations); Drw No
J093-PL3 (3D Views)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the measures set out
in the Revised Flood Risk Assessment (by Geoff Beel Consultancy dated December 2017)
forming part of this planning application, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, in particular the following measures shall be fully implemented before the
property is first occupied:

-Floor level of the new dwelling raised 500mm above the existing ground level.
-Further 500mm of flood resistant construction and demountable defences incorporated above
finished floor level.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not increase the risk of flooding or be at risk of
flooding.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with national guidance contained in Section 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, 2012.

4. The accommodation hereby permitted shall be and shall remain incidental to the use of the
dwelling known as 24 Clarkson Avenue, shall not be sold or let off separately, and shall be used
only by members of the family of the occupier of that dwelling.

Reason: The Local Planning Authority consider that the proposed annexe would be
inappropriate for occupation independent of the main dwelling by virtue of the substandard level
of accommodation of the annexe and the physical relationship between the annexe and the
main house which would create inadequate levels of residential amenity for the occupiers of
both.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG17 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

5. Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted beyond oversite a schedule of
external materials of construction of buildings and hard surfaced areas shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be constructed
in accordance with the materials so approved.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the external materials
of construction of the development in the interests of the character and appearance of the
development and the visual amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG14 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

6. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and by identifying matters of concern within the application and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local
Planning Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Page 41



Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 42



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H09-0023-18

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: David Grant -  Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H09-0023-18

Application Number: H09-0023-18 DDate Received: 9 January 2018

Application Type: FULL

Description: Extension and alterations

Location: 12 Fakenham Chase Holbeach Spalding

Applicant: R Kett & N Sutton AAgent: G R Merchant Ltd

Ward: Holbeach Town WWard Councillors: Cllr F Biggadike
Cllr T Carter
Cllr P C Foyster

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 Objection received and issues raised merit Committee consideration.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This application proposes to demolish a detached garage and erect a two storey side extension
with a single storey rear extension to a detached house.  A front elevation porch also forms part
of the proposal. The ground floor accommodation would provide a study, dining room and play
room.  At first floor would be a bedroom, dressing room and en-suite.  There would be no
windows to the western side elevation with 2 roof lights to the rear roof slope.  The play room
would project 7.55m to the rear, 2.048 m from the rear boundary.  It would have bi-fold doors
and 3 roof lights to the east elevation.  The maximum apex height of the playroom is 4.5 metres.
The application was amended as in its original form as the eaves of the playroom overhung the
boundary with 10 Fakenham Chase.

3.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 The application site is located on a paved private drive and the rear grassed garden is bordered
by 1.8 metre high timber boundary fences to the north, west and east. 8 Fakenham Chase is
located to the south of the dwelling, 10 Fakenham Chase to the west and 14 Fakenham Chase
to the north. 7 Fakenham Chase is located on the other side of the road to the east.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1 The Development Plan

Page 45

Agenda Item 9.



South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006

The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

SG1  General Sustainable Development
SG17 Protection of Residential Amenity
SG20 Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles
Section 7 - requiring good design

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 None.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 Holbeach Parish Council

Support.

6.2 Public

The bungalow to the rear of the site at 14 Fakenham Chase objects to the proposal. The have
expressed concerns with the height of the playroom and the occasional noise generated from
the applicant when using the existing rear bedroom for late night internet gaming. "The noise he
makes from the rear bedroom in the summer means we cannot open our bedroom window at
night.. I am aware he uses headphones but he becomes very animated. The new play room will
bring him even closer to our bedroom." The objector also states that the playroom extension will
cut out light to a bedroom they have beyond the 1.8 metre high timber fence at the rear of the
garden.

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The key issues for consideration are the design of the extension and its impact upon residential
amenity.

7.2 Design

7.3 The proposed design is considered to be appropriate for the site. The fenestration on the two
storey extension is considered to represent a standard frontage situation. Materials are to

Page 46



match those of the existing dwelling and would be conditioned as such.

7.4 Impact upon residential amenity

7.5 Were the playroom to be sited beyond the original rear wall of the dwelling and the ridge height
slightly lowered from 4.5 to 4 metres, the proposed length is not beyond the requirements of a
larger home extension application. The objector sites a loss of light but the windows are sited
beyond a 1.8 metre high fence and would not lead to a material loss of light under right to light
calculations as the playroom is 4.75 metres from 14 Fakenham Chase at the nearest point. The
Environmental Protection Officer when consulted has informed that no noise complaints have
been made regarding 12 Fakenham Chase.

7.6 There is not considered to be a material impact on 10 Fakenham Chase. The owner initially
objected to overhanging eaves from the playroom but they have subsequently withdrawn their
application after the plans were amended to address this. There is not considered to be a
precedent set from the proposed first floor windows and there is not fenestration on the side
elevation wall of 10 Fakenham Chase.

7.7 Conclusion

7.8 None of the concerns raised are considered to be material enough to warrant a
recommendation for refusal. The design, scale and layout of the proposal is appropriate for the
site and does not have a material impact on the character of the dwelling or the amenity of the
surrounding area.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 Grant permission subject to those conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
Drw Nos: 3230 17 01; 3230-17-02D

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The brickwork and roofing tiles of the development hereby permitted shall match as closely as
possible those of the principal existing dwelling on the site.

Reason: In the interests of the architectural and visual integrity of the overall development and
the visual amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG20 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

4. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and by identifying matters of concern within the application and negotiating, with the Applicant,
acceptable amendments to the proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local
Planning Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Page 47



Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 48



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



You can view this application on the Council's web site at
http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=H11-0003-18

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Development Manager

To: Planning Committee - 7 March 2018

(Author: David Grant -  Planning Officer)

Purpose: To consider Planning Application H11-0003-18

Application Number: H11-0003-18 DDate Received: 3 January 2018

Application Type: FULL

Description: Extension and alterations including single garage

Location: 65 LITTLE LONDON SPALDING

Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Shortland AAgent: Cooper Architectural Design
Ltd

Ward: Long Sutton WWard Councillors: Cllr A C Tennant
Cllr J Tyrrell
Cllr L J Eldridge

1.0 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

1.1 The applicant is the mother of Councillor Eldridge.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The proposal is for a rear elevation sunroom, a utility room on the side elevation and a single
detached garage to the rear. The sun room will project slightly further beyond the existing rear
elevation wall of the bathroom and will be sited 0.165 metres from the boundary with 67 Little
London. The utility room will project 3.375 metres forward of the kitchen on the side elevation
wall, and will be sited behind the line of frontage from the principal elevation wall of the dwelling.
The single garage will measure 4 metres maximum apex height and will be sited 1 metre from
the rear boundary adjacent to 3 Back Lane and 1 metre from the boundary with 63 Little
London.

3.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.1 The dwelling is semi-detached with 67 Little London to the north. The property is sited on a row
of dwellings within the defined settlement limits of Long Sutton. An existing 4.1 metre wide
vehicular access is located to the south of the site. A hedge above 2 metres in height is at the
boundary with 63 Little London, with a 1.6 metre timber fence at 67 Little London and a 1.8
metre high timber fence at the rear boundary with 3 Back Lane.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1 The Development Plan Page 51

Agenda Item 10.



South Holland District Local Plan, July 2006

The South Holland Local Plan 2006 was formally adopted on 18 July 2006. Following a
direction from the Government Office for the East Midlands under paragraph 1(3) of Schedule
18 to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as of 18 July 2009 only certain Local
Plan policies have been extended and continue to form part of the development plan.  In the
context of those saved policies referred to below, it is considered that the Local Plan was
adopted in general accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (albeit
under the transitional arrangements).  Those policies referred to below are considered to accord
with the thrust of guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in the
context of paragraph 215 of the NPPF should therefore continue to be given substantial weight
in the decision making process.

If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made
under the Planning Acts, Section 38 (6) to the Town and Country Planning Act as amended by
the 2004 Act states that the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Policy SG1 - General Sustainable Development
Policy SG14 - Design and Layout of New Development
Policy SG17 - Protection of Residential Amenity
Policy SG20 - Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012

Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), 2014

5.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 None

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 None

7.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The key issues for consideration in this application are:
- Layout and Design
- Parking Provision and manoeuvrability

7.2 Layout and Design

7.3 The proposed extensions are considered to be in keeping with the existing property and be
constructed from matching brickwork. Calderdale concrete slate will be used in place of the
existing blue black slate.  There would be limited impact on the residential amenity of the
adjoining property.

7.4 Parking provision and manoeuvrability

7.5 Proposed parking provision is considered to be acceptable on site. The proposal does not
afford the manoeuvrability to allow vehicles to exit the site in a forward gear, although few
houses in the vicinity afford the ability to do so.  The detached garage would be set well back on
the plot with a lengthy drive in front.

Page 52



7.6 Conclusion

7.7 The design, scale and layout is considered appropriate for the site. No objections have been
received from any consultees, and the proposed development can be accommodated on site
without material harm to neighbour amenity.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 Grant permission subject to those conditions listed at Section 9.0 of this report.

9.0 CONDITIONS

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
1723-01 & 1723-03

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. All new and replacement brickwork utilised in carrying out the development hereby permitted
shall match as closely as possible that of the principal existing building on the site in terms of
the type of brick, mortar mix and method of bonding.

Reason: In the interests of the architectural and visual integrity of the overall development and
the visual amenity of the area in which it is set.
This Condition is imposed in accordance with Policy SG20 of the South Holland Local Plan,
2006.

4. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application
by assessing it against all material considerations, including national guidance, planning
policies and representations that have been received during the public consultation exercise,
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission.

This decision notice, the relevant accompanying report and the determined plans can be viewed
online at http://planning.sholland.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningSearch

Background papers:- Planning Application Working File

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Fidler ,  Development Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764428
Email rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Plan A

Page 53



Page 54



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:

To:

Author:

Subject:

Purpose:

Development Manager

Planning Committee

Richard Fidler

Planning Appeals

To provide an update on recent Appeal Decisions

Recommendation

a) That the contents of this report be noted

1.0

1.1

OVERVIEW

Since the last report 1 appeal decision(s) have been received, the results are as follows:

Appeals Dismissed:

Appeals Allowed:

Appeals Part Allowed:

1

0

0

1.2 Since the 1st April 2017 52 planning appeal decisions have been received of which 37 have been
dismissed, which equates to a success rate of 71.15%

2.0 PPLANNING APPEALS DISMISSED

H14-0231-17 Mr D Drew - Mark Simmonds

Flat 77a Church Street APP/A2525/W/17/3187729
Replacement Windows - Retrospective (re-
application following refusal of H14-0257-16 and
dismissal of appeal APP/A2525/W/16/3155306)

Decision Date:
01 February  2018

The Inspector concluded that the retention of uPVC windows is an inappropriate alteration in a
visually prominent position in the Pinchbeck Conservation Area, as such it fails to preserve or
enhance the character and appearance of the building and consequently the Conservation Area.
It is therefore contrary to section 12 of the NPPF which seeks to protect the historic environment
from harm through inappropriate or damaging development.

3.0 PPLANNING APPEALS ALLOWED

None

4.0 EENFORCEMENT APPEALS DISMISSED

None Page 55

Agenda Item 11.



5.0 EENFORCEMENT APPEALS UPHELD

None

Background Papers - Planning Application and Enforcement Working Files

Lead Contact Officer
Richard Fidler; Development Manager
01775 764428
rfidler@sholland.gov.uk

Page 56


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	5. H09-0863-17
	6. H16-1053-17
	7. H02-1192-17
	8. H01-1017-17
	9. H09-0023-18
	10. H11-0003-18
	11. Appeals

